
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 
November 23, 2015 

5:00 PM 

(amended) 
 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – David Harwell 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance   
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

a. Interviews for Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation and Vestavia Hills Library 
Board on Wednesday, December 2, 2015 beginning at 7:30 AM in the Executive 
Conference Room 

b. City Hall closed November 26 & 27, 2015 for Thanksgiving Holidays 
6. Public Involvement Meeting for Project Number CMAQ-7030(600) for sidewalk along 

CR-43 (Massey Road) from SR-3 (US-31, Montgomery Highway) to CR-99 
(Columbiana Road) in Vestavia Hills 

7. City Manager’s Report 
8. Councilors’ Reports 
9. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
10. Approval of Minutes –  November 9, 2015  (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business  

New Business  

11. Resolution Number 4769 – Alcohol License – Approving an 020- Restaurant Retail 
Liquor License for Fig Tree Concepts LLC d/b/a Fig Tree Café; 3160 Cahaba Heights 
Road; Jon Holland, Executive (public hearing) 

12. Resolution Number 4771 – A Resolution Declaring A Certain Fire Department Pumper 
As Surplus And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 

 

 



New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

13. Ordinance Number 2610 – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2570 Finding 
And Determining That Real Property (“The Property”) Being Vacant Property Situated 
At 2253 Great Rock Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama Owned By The City Of Vestavia 
Hills, Alabama Is Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purposes; And To Authorize 
And Direct The City Manager To Execute And Deliver A Land Sales Contract To Sell 
Said Property  

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

14. Resolution Number 4770 - A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of Firearms For The 
Vestavia Hills Police Department  (Public Hearing) 

15. Resolution Number 4772 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For CWSRF Project At Little 
Shades Creek At A Negotiated Price And Authorizing Further Expenditures For Park 
Amenities  (Public Hearing) 

16. Resolution Number 4773 – A Resolution Authorizing The Funding Of RMS Software 
Through New World From Special Fund 11 – Court And Corrections  (Public Hearing) 

17. Citizens Comments  
18. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
 November 9, 2015 

Page 1 
 

 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

NOVEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  

      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
 
 Invocation was given by Jordy Henson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led 
by visiting Boy Scouts.   
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 

 
• The Mayor recognized all veterans who were in the audience.  He thanked them 

for their service to this Country. 
• Mr. Pierce recognized Andrew Burke, representing the Vestavia Hills Chamber of 

Commerce. 
• The Mayor announced a Public Involvement Meeting for Project Number 

CMAQ-7030(600) for sidewalk along CR-43 (Massey Road) from SR-3 (US-31, 
Montgomery Highway) to CR-99 (Columbiana Road) in Vestavia Hills on 
Monday, November 23, 2015 at 5 PM.  He invited everyone to attend. 

• The Mayor and Mr. Ammons read the applicants who have applied for the Library 
Board and the Park and Recreation Board vacancies.  The Council concurred to 
schedule interviews for December 2, 2015 beginning at 7:30 AM.   

• The Mayor welcomed the following Boy Scouts to the meeting:  Archer 
Williamson, 712 Boulder Lake Lane; Erik Brunsold, 4906 Reynolds Lane; 
Jonathan Sanders, 4335 Paxton way; Alex Speigel, 4301 10th Avenue South, 



City Council Minutes 
 November 9, 2015 

Page 2 
 

Birmingham; Nicholas Wood, 4270 Boulder Lake Drive; Jackson Hayes, 3967 
Wall Street; Luke Robinson, 1649 Kristi Circle; Matt Kuehr, 805 Lake Vista 
Circle; Mason Mills, 4517 Vestlake Ridge Way; Shrijitn Balasundararugun, 1011 
Liberty Park Loop; Pritham Sathish, 513 Liberty Lake Drive; Matthew Coleman, 
4320 Paxton Way; Shawn Loyal, 508 Lake Colony Drive; Daniel Perkins, 5553 
Afton Drive; Nate Siple, 4327 Paxton Way; Harrison Downes, 701 Hampden 
Place Circle. 

 
 

PROCLAMATION -  
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation for National Hospice Procurement Month.  
Mr. Downes read the proclamation and presented it to Shannon Cook, V.P. of Business 
Development; Kim Smith, Volunteer Coordinator; and Kim Rohloff, Community 
Educator for Affinity Hospice. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes gave a PowerPoint presentation to update the Council and audience 
on sales tax collections and the breakdown for collection areas.  He also reviewed 
the collections from building permits for the past several years. 

• Mr. Downes gave examples of building projects in the City along with the Resort 
Lifestyle building at Patchwork Farms. 

• Review of the new Action Center shows that property complaints have risen to 
more than 400 complaints and are being closed within 30 days which is 
tremendous progress due to some revision of ordinances and moving the 
compliance officer to the Police Department.  He also showed a locational map 
depicting where the majority of complaints are derived. 

• Photos of the new signage being installed throughout the City bearing the new 
logo and the branding for the City were shown and explained. 

• In closing, Mr. Downes indicated that the City employees are currently raising 
money for United Way, as well as volunteering their time to dedicate to being a 
Big Brother/Big Sister. 

 
 

COUNCILORS’ REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Pierce updated the Council on some information that he had received from 
one of the young men who had recently been awarded a scholarship to the Naval 
Academy.  He stated he is happy to report that the young man is working hard and 
seems to be very happy in his attendance at the Academy. 

 
 



City Council Minutes 
 November 9, 2015 

Page 3 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of October 26, 2015 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of October 26, 2015 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Henley and 
second by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4767 
 
Resolution Number 4767 – Annexation – 90-Day – 1724 Vestaview Lane; Charles 

Farrell III, Owner  (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4767 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Ammons. 
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the report from the Annexation Committee.  This property is 
currently being renovated to be sold at a later date.  The property is adjacent to the 
Shades Mountain Baptist Church and is surrounded by the City. 
 
 Charles Farrell III was present in regard to the request. 
 
 Mr. Ammons asked about Engineering’s report of inspection of a drainage pipe. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that they did the inspection and found no flaws in the pipe. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2609 
 
Ordinance Number 2609 - Annexation – Overnight – 1724 Vestaview Lane, Charles 

Farrell III, Owner  (public hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
 November 9, 2015 

Page 4 
 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2609 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Ammons.  
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that this is the overnight annexation of the same property. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4768 
 
Resolution Number 4768 - Annexation – 90-Day – 2739 Rocky Ridge Road; 

Cameron Eaton and Tison Barganier, Owners (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4768 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Ammons. 
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the report from the Annexation Committee.  Three quarters of the 
property is already in the City.  This request is to annex the remaining quarter and divide 
the property into four single-family lots. 
 
 Brian Harris, Gonzalez Strength, was present in regard to the request.  He 
explained that the intent is to bring a private road in from Rocky Ridge to access the 
property. 
 
 Mr. Sharp asked how the zoning staff reacted to the request. 
 
 Ms. Leavings stated that the staff has only seen these tentative drawings, but it 
appears to be keeping with surrounding properties.  The developer is seeking 40-foot 
front setbacks and will need to request a zoning that allows for those setbacks. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
 November 9, 2015 

Page 5 
 

NEW BUSINESS  

 
None. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on 
November 23, 2015 at 5 PM. 

• None 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for citizen comments. 
 

• Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road stated that the new City Hall facility is 
very beautiful and how good it was for the last Council meeting as compared to 
controversial meetings in the old facility. 

• Mr. Ammons commended the VHPD, expecially Lt. York and Lt. Evans, on 
handling the recent kidnapping recovery case. 

 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley.  

Meeting adjourned at 5:45 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4769 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR FIG TREE CONCEPTS, LLC D/B/A FIG TREE 
CAFÉ; JON HOLLAND, EXECUTIVE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Fig Tree Concepts, LLC d/b/a Fig Tree Café, located at 3160 

Cahaba Heights Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the on-premise sale of 020 

Restaurant Liquor; Jon Holland, executive. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23rd day of November, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4769



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4769



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4769



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4769



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4769



Resolution Number 4771 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4771 
 
 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal 

property detailed in the attached “Exhibit A; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell and/or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4771 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 23rd day of 

November, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



VOLENS ET POTENS 

 

 
 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2015 
 
RE:  Surplus Equipment 
 
 
The Fire Department has placed into service, a new pumper.  I recommend that the 1996 Emergency 
One Hurricane Pumper, VIN 4EN3AAA88T1005854 with City of Vestavia Hills property tag # 
16021 be sold as surplus.  The department also has the following cache of surplus equipment that is 
no longer used or which is obsolete: 
 

1  30 foot extension ladder 
2 25 foot extension ladder 
1 14 foot extension ladder 

 1 8 foot folding ladder 
 1 10 foot metal hose bed divider 
 6 3 inch hose clamps 
 4 electrical cord reels 
 4 folding metal backboards 
 5 air pack mounting brackets 
 4 fire extinguisher mounting brackets 
 2 hose jackets 
 3 zip male couplings 
 2 yellow scene lights 
 1 set wheel chocks 
 2 2 ½ inch intakes 
 6 steamer caps 
 3 prying tools 
 1 bolt cutter 
 1 electric oxygen bottle bracket 
 1 box of old radio headsets 
 1 box of old miscellaneous radio parts 
 6 ladder bumpers 
 2 sections of 1” booster hose 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4771



VOLENS ET POTENS 

 

 1 deluge gun mount 
 1 box of assorted CID blocks and bases 
 20 5 inch couplings 
 8 sections of 1 ½ inch hose 
 36 sections of 1 ¾ inch hose 
 12 sections of 2 ½ inch hose 
 32 sections of 3 inch hose 
 
 
I recommend that the City Council authorize you to sell and/or dispose of the above-referenced 
property in order to obtain the best resale value of said vehicles. 

 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4771



Ordinance Number 2610 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2610 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2570 FINDING 
AND DETERMINING THAT REAL PROPERTY (“THE PROPERTY”) 
BEING VACANT PROPERTY SITUATED AT 2253 GREAT ROCK 
ROAD, VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA OWNED BY THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA IS NOT NEEDED FOR PUBLIC OR 
MUNICIPAL PURPOSES; AND TO AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A LAND SALES 
CONTRACT TO SELL SAID PROPERTY. 
 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2610 is approved and adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 23rd  day of November, 2015. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama is the owner of a parcel of land situated 

at 2253 Great Rock Road in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama constituting 

approximately 0.39± acres, which said property is more particularly described as Lot 15, Block 

3, Southridge Addition and shall hereinafter be referred to as “the Property;” and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the Land Sales Contract (hereinafter referred to collectively as the 

“Contract”) is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit A and is incorporated into this Ordinance by 

reference as though set out fully herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama find 

and determine that the Property above-described is not needed for municipal or public purposes; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of the Contract was considered at a public 

hearing held on Monday, November 23, 2015, at the Vestavia Hills City Hall located at 1032 

Montgomery Highway in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama beginning at 5:00 p.m.; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds and determines that 

the Property more particularly described above is not needed for municipal or public purposes. 

 2. A public hearing was held by the Vestavia Hills City Council on Monday, 

November 23, 2015, at the Vestavia Hills City Hall located at 1032 Montgomery Highway in the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama beginning at 5:00 p.m. to consider the enactment of this 

Ordinance, the execution and delivery of the Contract and the matters required to be considered. 



Ordinance Number 2610 
Page 2 

 
 3. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 

written Contract marked as Exhibit A and attached hereto. 

 4. If any part, section or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such 

holding. 

 5. The provision of the Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon the 

passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and the 

publication and/or posting thereof as required by Alabama law. 

 DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED, on this the 23rd day of November, 

2015. 

 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2610 
Page 3 

 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2610 is a true and correct copy 
of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 
23rd day of November, 2015 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



PATRICK H. BOONE

ATTORNEY AND COUNSELOR AT LAW

NEW SOUTH FEDERAL SAVINGS BUILDING. SUITE 705

215 RICHARD ARRINGTON, JR. BOULEVARD NORTH

BIRMINGHAM. ALABAMA 35203-3720

TELEPHONE (205) 324-2018

FACSIMILE (205) 324-2295

November 17,2015

By Hand Delivery

City Manager Jeffrey D. Downes
Vestavia Hills Municipal Center
1032 Montgomery Highway
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216

In Re: Sale of Real Estate Located at 2253 Great Rock Road

Dear Mr. Downes:

This morning, you furnished to me via electronic mail a proposed Real Estate Sales
Contract by and between Price Homes, LLC, as Buyer, and the City ofVestavia Hills, Alabama,
as Seller, wherein the Buyer agreed to purchase and the Seller agreed to sell the property at 2253
Great Rock Road for and in consideration of$45,000.00. You requested that I review the contract
and provide you with my written legal opinion. The purpose of this letter is to comply with your
request.

I do not have any recommendations for additions, deletions, changes and/or corrections to
the contract. Therefore, from a legal standpoint, I recommend it as to substance and to form.
Please call me if you have any questions regardingthis matter.

Sincerely,

Patrick H. Boone

Vestavia Hills City Attorney

PHB:gp
P.S. A copy ofthe contract is attached hereto.



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2610



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2610



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2610



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2610



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2610



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2610



Resolution Number 4770 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4770 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VESTAVIA HILLS POLICE 
DEPARTMENT TO PURCHASE FIREARMS  

 
 WHEREAS, the Police Chief has identified a need of firearms for his department as 

detailed in an Interoffice Memorandum to the City Manager dated November 13, 2015 in an 

amount not to exceed $80,000, a copy of which is marked at “Exhibit A” and is attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4770 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, funding for said firearms shall be derived from the Police Department 

Confiscation Account; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 41-16-51(13) of the Code of Alabama, 1975, states “Contractual 

services and purchases of commodities for which there is only one vendor or supplier and 

contractual services and purchase of personal property which by their very nature are impossible 

to award by competitive bidding;” and 

 WHEREAS, the manufacturer, Glock, has established a non-negotiable price on Law 

Enforcement weapons thus exempting the firearms from competitive bidding; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager concurs with the Police Chief’s recommendation for said 

purchase to be funded from Police Confiscations; and  

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to approve 

said purchase. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Police Chief is hereby authorized to purchase firearms as detailed in said “Exhibit A” 

in an amount not to exceed $80,000; and 

2. Said purchase shall be expensed to the Police Department Confiscations Account; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4770 shall be effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



Resolution Number 4770 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



VESTAVIA HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT    
 
 
To: Mr. Downes    MEMO 
  
From: Chief Dan Rary 
 
CC: Becky Leavings 
 
Date:  13 Nov 2015 
 
Re: Request for Council agenda 
 
 
Mr. Downes, 
 
I am requesting that the following item be placed on the City Councils agenda for 23 Nov 15 for 
first read. 
 
I am requesting to purchase duty handguns for the Police Department.  The total price for this 
project will not exceed $80,000.00.  The breakdown of this expense is below. 
 
Glock 41 45acp handguns [100 X $504.00=$50,400] 
Surefire X300U lights [100 X $185.00 = $18,500.00] 
Holster [100 X$100.00 = $10,000.00] 
 
Funding will come from the PD Confiscations Account. 
 
We do not have to bid this out due to Glock establishing a non-negotiable price on Law 
Enforcement weapons.  A Glock distributor for Alabama is Gulf States Distributors in 
Montgomery, AL who we have an existing bid for Police Equipment.  
 

Section 41-16-51 

Contracts for which competitive bidding not required. 

(13) Contractual services and purchases of commodities for which there is only one vendor or 
supplier and contractual services and purchases of personal property which by their very nature 
are impossible to award by competitive bidding. 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4770



Resolution Number 4772 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4772 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR CWSRF PROJECT AT 
LITTLE SHADES CREEK AT A NEGOTIATED PRICE AND 
AUTHORIZING FURTHER EXPENDITURES FOR PARK AMENITIES 

 
 WHEREAS, The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, working under a grant/loan from 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund opened and publicly read sealed bids for a green 

infrastructure project that will provide water quality and flood control benefits to Little Shades 

Creek also known as CWSRF Project at Little Shades Creek (“the Project”); and 

 WHEREAS, the only bid received was submitted by Forestry Environmental Services, 

Inc., in the amount of $685,000, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4772 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, Forestry Environmental Services, Inc., being the only bid submitted, the 

City Manager and Public Services Director negotiated a reduced price in the amount of $452,690 

pursuant to the detail marked as Exhibit B, a copy of which is attached to and incorporated into 

this Resolution Number 4772 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Community Foundation of Greater Birmingham has donated $50,000 to 

purchase certain amenities for the newly constructed natural area; and 

 WHEREAS, an additional $50,000 will be required to cover needed City infrastructure 

costs such as sidewalks, etc.; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept 

said bid at the negotiated price. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by Forestry Environmental Services, Inc., as renegotiated by 

the City Manager and Public Services Director in a scope and price not to exceed 

$452,690 is hereby accepted as detailed in Exhibits A & B; and 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend up to $50,000 for park amenities from 

funding of the Community Foundation of Greater Birmingham; and 

3. Funding required for project completion shall be derived from the ADEM Clean Water 

grant/loan until those funds are exhausted.  Further funding shall be derived from the 

City’s Capital Reserve Fund. 



Resolution Number 4772 
Page 2 

 
4. This Resolution Number 4772 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4772



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4772



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4772



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4772



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4772



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4772



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4772



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4772



Project:  CWSRF PROJECT LITTLE SHADES CREEK 
Bid Date:  OCTOBER 19, 2015 REVISED schedule "A"

By:  FORESTRY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC

I tem Description Qty Bid Unit Cost Bid Total

1 MOBILIZATION / GENERAL CONDITIONS 1 LS 48,000.00 $48,000.00
2 CLEAR AND GRUBB 1 LS 8,000.00 $8,000.00
3 EROSION CONTROL 1 LS 21,500.00 $21,500.00
4 STRIP TOPSOIL 1 LS 9,300.00 $9,300.00
5 GRADING 1 LS 100,000.00 $100,000.00
6 FINE GRADE SITE 1 LS 25,000.00 $25,000.00
7 RIFFLE CONSTRUCTION 1 LS 9,000.00 $9,000.00
8 J HOOK CONSTRUCTION 1 LS 11,500.00 $11,500.00
9 CROSS VANE CONSTRUCTION 1 LS 8,000.00 $8,000.00

10 STORM SEWER SYSTEM 1 LS 17,800.00 $17,800.00
11 BIO-SWALE 1 LS 12,800.00 $12,800.00
12 REPLATE TOPSOIL 1 LS 15,100.00 $15,100.00
13 SOD 1 LS 25,000.00 $25,000.00
14 COIR MATERIAL 1 LS 5,400.00 $5,400.00
15 TREES 1 LS 27,400.00 $27,400.00
16 PINE / HARDWOOD MIX (CHANGE TO 3 GALLON) 1 LS 17,600.00 $17,600.00
17 WETLAND PLUG MIX (CHANGED TO BARE ROOT) 1 LS 46,500.00 $46,500.00
18 STREAM BANK (CHANGE TO BARE ROOT) 1 LS 12,500.00 $12,500.00
19 MEADOW SEED MIX 1 LS 7,200.00 $7,200.00
20 FINAL CLEANUP 1 LS 5,400.00 $5,400.00
21 MAINTENANCE OF WORK 6 MO 3,281.67 $19,690.00

Bid Total $452,690.00

There will be a credit of $55 per load for every load that is hauled off by the City of Vestavia in one of their Triaxle Trucks.

Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4772















RESOLUTION NUMBER 4773 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO FUNE 
ONE-HALF OF ANNUAL MAINTENANCE FOR RMS SOFTWARE FOR 
NEW WORLD TO SPECIAL FUND 11 – COURT AND CORRECTION 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to fund one-half of annual maintenance for RMS 

Software through New World from Special Fund Account 11 – Court and Corrections in 

the amount of $41,250 (annual maintenance of $82,500); and 

2. This Resolution Number 4773 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 




	2015_1123CC_agenda
	2015_1109CC_M
	Resolution 4769
	Resolution 4771
	Ordinance 2610
	Resolution 4770
	Resolution 4772
	Resolution 4773



